

# Minutes of Naas Municipal District Meeting held at 3.30 pm on Tuesday, 13 June 2023 in the Council Chamber

**Members Present:** Councillor Sammon (Chair), Councillors S Moore, B Clear, C Kelly, A Breen, F Brett

**Officials Present**: Mr E Ryan (District Manager), Mr D Reel (District Engineer), Mr S Deegan (Senior Engineer), Mr M McLoughlin (A/ Senior Executive officer), Ms S Walsh (Executive Engineer), Mr S Wallace (Senior Executive Parks Superintendent), Mr J Hennessy (Senior Executive Engineer) Ms M Richardson (Meetings Administrator), Ms J Fogarty (Meetings Secretary) and others.

#### NS01/0623

#### **Declaration of Interests**

There were no declarations from the members of pecuniary or beneficial interests under Section 177 of the Local Government Act 2001, as amended.

#### NS02/0623

#### **Minutes and Progress Report**

The members considered the minutes of the monthly meeting of the Naas Municipal District held on Tuesday 09 May 2023 together with the progress report.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Brett and seconded by Councillor Kelly that the minutes of the monthly meeting held on Tuesday, 09 May 2023 be confirmed and taken as read. The progress report was noted.



#### NS03/0623

## **Matters Arising**

Councillor Brett thanked Mr J Hennessy for the report he gave regarding Primrose Gardens. He said that the councillors need to prioritise the finishing of estates. He stated that he will fully support Mr J Hennessey if he calls in the bond from the contractor.

Councillor Moore requested that Eadestown improvement works be put back on the progress report.

Mr E Ryan advised he would brief the members in committee regarding the McInerney lands.

#### NS04/0623

#### **Municipal District Road works**

Mr D Reel updated the members on the municipal district road works. The report was circulated to the members in advance of the meeting.

# **Road Resurfacing**

#### Naas Municipal District Restoration Improvement (RI) Works 2023

The following roads are included in the improvement works projects plan for 2023:

• R407 – Sallins to Clane Road – Tender Stage

L3012 – Monread Road, Naas – Complete

L3012 – Millenium Park, Naas – Complete

L29975 – Sarto/Pacelli Roads, Naas – Complete

R410 – Blessington Road (Crab Lane) – Construction Stage

## **Surface Dressing Works**

The Naas Municipal District propose to commence the surface dressing works programme for 2023 in June. The roads to be improved include:

L 2019 – Arthurstown



- L2011 Fishery Lane
- L6027 Cromwellstown
- L6035 Tipper East
- L2019 Tipper South
- L6038 Redbog
- L6028 Cupidstown
- L6032 Newtown

# **Footpaths**

Tenders have been awarded for works at the following locations which will commence construction in the coming weeks:

Roselawn (footpath improvements)
 Complete

• St Brigids Terrace, Kill (footpath improvements) - Complete

River Lawns, Kill (footpath improvements)
 Complete

Mill Lane raised table (footpath improvements)
 Complete

Sundays Well (footpath improvements)
 Complete

Blessington Road (footpath improvements)
 - Tender Stage

Ballymore Eustace (uncontrolled crossings)
 - Tender Stage

#### **LPT/Carparks Funded Works**

The Naas Municipal District Local Property Tax (LPT)/Carparking works programme for 2023 will be developed in line with the 2023 allocation, as agreed with the Naas Municipal District Councillors.

## **Drainage**

The Naas Municipal District drainage programme for 2023 will be developed in line with the 2023 allocation from the Department of Transport.



# **Low Cost Safety Improvement Works**

The Naas Municipal District have received funding from the Department of Transport for the following 2023 Safety Improvement Works. It is proposed to develop these projects with delivery by Q4 2023:

R410 – Beggars End to Eadestown - Design Stage
 L2010 – Sherlockstown to Kileenbeg - Design Stage
 L6018/L6019 – CastleWarden Cross - Design Stage

The members were all happy with the report and had no questions for Mr D Reel.

#### NS05/0623

# Naas Municipal District LPT Schedule of Works 2023

The members considered the remaining LPT 2023 allocations for the Naas Municipal District Committee.

The Meetings Administrator informed the members that requests had been received for LPT funding to be allocated to the following projects:

#### **Councillor S Moore:**

Naas Cricket Club €2000 Naas Tidy Towns €2000

#### Councillor A Breen:

Naas Women's Shed €2000 Féile na Sollán €1000 Monread Garden Res Association €2000

#### Councillor E Sammon:

Naas Rugby Club €1000

Ballymore Eustace Drama Society €1000

Bihar Jharthand Association €1000

#### **Councillor B Clear:**

Naas Musical Society	€500
Oldtown Residents Association	€700
Naas Women's Shed	€800
Killashee View Residents	€200
McCauley Place Residents Association	€500

# **Councillor F Brett:**

Christmas Lights committee €2000

# **Councillor C Kelly:**

Killashee View Residents	€200
Sunshine Club	€800
Millbank Residents	€250
Féile na Sollán	€1000
Sallins Tidy Towns	€2000

Councillor Sammon advised that she would forward on by email, all the LPT that had been agreed so far by the members to the administrator after the meeting. (See Appendix B)

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Kelly, seconded by Councillor Moore and agreed by all the members that the above requests received for LPT funding be approved.

#### NS06/0623

# Date and venue for the Annual Meeting

The Meeting Administrator advised the members that in accordance with standing orders, it was proposed that the Annual Meeting take place at 3.00 pm Tuesday 11 July 2023 at Punchestown Racecourse. The monthly meeting would commence after at 3.30pm.



**Resolved** with the agreement of the members that the annual meeting be held at Punchestown Racecourse at 3.00 pm Tuesday 11 July 2023 followed by the monthly meeting.

#### NS07/0623

# **Update on the Roads Capital Projects**

The members received an update from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Directorate on Roads Capital Projects.

Mr. S Deegan gave an overview of the Roads Capital Projects for the County informing the members that updates outside of the Municipal District meeting could be provided.

Councillor Moore requested that the designs be given to the members to review.

Mr S Deegan advised that the whole presentation would be sent out to all the members after all municipal districts had the presentation at their own meetings.

#### NS08/0623

# Section 38 at Rathasker Heights, Naas

The members considered the Road Traffic Act 1994 – Section 38- Proposed Double Yellow Lines/Parking Restrictions at Rathasker Heights, Naas, Co. Kildare.

A report had been circulated to the members in advance of the meeting. The report was noted.

#### NS09/0623

#### Section 38 Double Yellow Lines/Parking Restrictions at Morell Road

The members considered the Road Traffic Act 1994 – Section 38 – Proposed Double Yellow Lines/Parking Restrictions at Morell Road, L-4999-0, Naas, Co. Kildare to proceed to Section 38.

A report had been circulated to the members in advance of the meeting. The report was noted.



#### NS10/0623

#### **Other Business**

Councillors Moore and Clear expressed their disappointment at the decision of the Meetings Administrator not to accept their motions and questions which had been received after the deadline.

#### NS11/0623

#### Bike Racks/Bike Park, Sallins

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Kelly

That the council assess Sallins for the provision of Bike Racks/Bike Park as a matter of
priority, in the area around the Grand Canal.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Kelly and seconded by Councillor Brett.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the team will meet with Councillor Kelly on site to assess the suitability of a location and feasibility of the proposal.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Kelly, seconded by Councillor Brett and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

# NS12/0623

## Bus shelters in the municipal district

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Kelly

That the council provide an updated list on the provision of bus shelters in the municipal district.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Kelly and seconded by Councillor Clear.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the following bus stop locations have been identified for bus shelter designs in the Naas Municipal District:

Stop ID	Location
Number	
104191	Fire Station, Limerick Road, Naas (In-Bound)
104231	Roseville, Dublin Road, Naas (In-Bound)
103801	Roseville, Dublin Road, Naas (Out-Bound)
10063	Old Bridge Monread North, Sallins (In-Bound)

Councillor Clear stated that the provision of bus shelters would make a big difference especially as the public were being encouraged to use public transport. He said there was one new bus stop in Sallins and enquired if the council could look at putting a shelter there.

Councillor Brett mentioned that the bus stop in Poplar Square was no longer in use.

Councillor Clear advised that this was because the bus companies did not consider the stop to be up to standard.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Kelly, seconded by Councillor Clear and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

#### NS13/0623

# **Bollards from Fr Murphy Place to Hollywood Park Naas**

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Breen

That council consider installing bollards along the footpath area from Fr Murphy Place to the traffic lights at Hollywood Park Naas in the interests of the safety of school children from the nearby primary/secondary schools on the Sallins Road.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Breen and seconded by Councillor Brett

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the footpath on this section of the Sallins Road has limited width. By



placing bollards along its length, the effective width of the footpath would be further reduced so it is not considered appropriate to provide bollards at this location.

Councillor Breen accepted the report but said that it was very difficult to pass if someone was walking by with a pram/buggy. She accepted that the footpath would be further narrowed by the placement of bollards.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Breen, seconded by Councillor Brett and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

#### NS14/0623

# Yellow box at the Hartwell Road junction

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Brett

That the council install a yellow box at the Hartwell Road junction in Kill Village.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Brett and seconded by Councillor Sammon.

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Naas Municipal District office will assess the provision of a yellow box junction at this location in line with the relevant technical guidance document.

Councillor Brett informed the members that a yellow box would improve traffic flow as currently traffic was unable to move when the lights changed.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Brett, seconded by Councillor Sammon and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

#### NS15/0623

#### **Sharks Teeth painting program**

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Brett

Can the council advise on the feasibility of carrying out a "sharks teeth" painting program on ramps within our municipal district, where required?



A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Naas Municipal District office are undertaking improvements to a number of ramps in the district this year, as part of the current works programme. Due to financial constraints, it is not possible to improve all ramps in the district. If there are any specific locations in mind, the District Engineer would be happy to discuss this with the Councillors.

The report was noted.

#### NS16/0623

#### Weeds at the lakes at Lakelands/Ballymore

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Breen

That the council investigate the current unacceptable situation with regard to weeds covering
the surface of all the lakes at Lakelands/Ballymore Road in Naas, as occurred last year,
making it impossible for the waterfowl to use the water as intended.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Breen and seconded by Councillor Kelly.

A report was received from Mr. S Wallace, A/Senior Parks and Landscaping Officer informing the members that an ecologist will be engaged to investigate this, and the findings of their report will be issued to members once completed.

Councillor Breen expressed that she was not happy with the report. She said that it was impossible for ducks and swans to get into the lakes. She asked if the report was back from the ecologist yet? She also stated that she brought this up at a meeting last year and was told it was due to the hot weather at the time.

Councillor Moore stated that he was involved in discussing this item last year and proposed that the council construct a silt trap south of the lakes that could be serviced regularly.

Growth above the surface was due to the soil level being higher.

Mr S Wallace said that this was a natural occurrence and advised that the report from the ecologist would be given around the month of August.



**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Breen, seconded by Councillor Kelly and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

#### NS17/0623

#### Removal of trees/hedgerows

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Breen Can the council provide an update on the removal of trees/hedgerows at the entrance of Oakglade on the Blessington Road, Naas?

A report was received from the Transport, Mobility and Open Spaces Department informing the members that the Transportation Department has agreed to revised construction details which allows for the retention of the hedging on both sides of the Oak Glade Estate entrance and the revised design has been checked under the Road Safety Audit Stage 2 and the completed works will being examined under the Road Safety Audit Stage 3.

It should be noted that three existing trees will have to be removed to enable the works to be carried out which it is our understanding has been agreed with the Oak Glade Residents Association.

The construction works at this junction will be carried out shortly on site by the Developer Ballymore Homes.

Councillor Breen stated that she had been getting emails from the residents enquiring about who gave permission to cut the hedges.

Councillor Sammon advised councillor Breen that this was a condition of planning in relation to 3 additional houses in Oak Glade and agreement had been reached with the resident's association.

The report was noted.



#### NS18/0623

#### Dog park at Monread Park

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Sammon

Can the council confirm if a dog park is being considered as part of the upgrade to Monread

Park?

A report was received from Mr. S Wallace, A/Senior Parks and Landscaping Officer informing the members that a dog park will be considered as part of the development of a master plan.

The report was noted.

#### NS19/0623

# **Playground in Ballymore Eustace**

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Sammon
Can the council confirm the funding available for a playground in Ballymore Eustace?
A report was received from Mr. S Wallace, A/Senior Parks and Landscaping Officer
informing the members that funding for a playground in Ballymore Eustace is not included in
the current capital works budget. However, it will be considered for inclusion in the review of
the programme in September.

The report was noted.

#### NS20/0623

## Commencement notices received for creches

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Sammon

That the council outline any commencement notices received for crèches in the Naas
municipal district since 2022.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Sammon, seconded by Councillor Brett

A report was received by the Planning Department informing the members that having examined all Commencement notices received and verified same with Building Control Section, the Planning Department can confirm that only one Commencement Notice for Creche facilities has been received in this municipal district area during 2022 and 2023 to date. This Creche is located in Devoy Quarter and the notice was received in June 2022.



Many of the Larger Developments known as SHD's and LRD's have creche facilities included in the development but of the ones commenced during 2022 and 2023 none of these are in this municipal district.

Councillor Sammon informed the members that there was a need to re-locate creches with schools or neighbourhood centres and not at the back of housing estates where they became unfit for purpose due to residents outgrowing the creche and not wanting the extra traffic through their estate.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Sammon seconded by Councillor Brett and agreed by the members that the report be noted.

#### NS21/0623

## **Complete the Kilmalum Estate**

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Brett

That the council outline how it proposes to complete the Kilmalum estate at Blessington

Manor where the developer is no longer in business (for over 12 years).

The motion was proposed by Councillor Brett, seconded by Councillor Sammon

A report was received by the Building and Development Control Department informing the members that Development Control hold a bond for Blessington Manor. Investigative works to the drainage infrastructure have been commissioned. Subject to the results an application and/or site resolution plan will be progressed with Uisce Éireann. Development Control have also engaged with the existing Management Company appointed by the receiver.

Communication is ongoing in relation to works that may be required to progress the taking in charge.

Councillor Brett stated that this was a positive report and advised that this estate needed to be prioritised.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Brett seconded by Councillor Sammon and agreed by the members that the report be noted.



#### NS22/0623

# **Taking in charge of Primrose Gardens**

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Breen Can the council provide an update on the taking in charge of Primrose Gardens Estate, Naas?

A report was received by the Building and Development Control Department informing the members that a warning letter, outlining the conditions of planning that had not been addressed, was sent to the Developer on Tuesday 9 May. Development Control subsequently met with the Developer at Áras Chill Dara on Friday 12 May regarding the outstanding works and information required for the taking in charge of Primrose Gardens, Naas. A four-week period was given to the Developer to provide the outstanding information and a program for completion of the outstanding works. The four-week period expired on Wednesday the 7 of June. Only partial information has been received and no program for completion of the development has been provided. Further discussions with the Planning Section in Kildare County Council will be undertaken to determine the best course of action moving forward.

Mr J Hennessey advised that he would update the members after the discussion with the Planning department.

The report was noted.

#### NS23/0623

### **Arts Awards and Bursaries for 2023**

The members considered the Arts Awards and Bursaries for 2023 for the Naas Municipal District. Report was previously circulated to the members. (See Appendix A)

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Brett, seconded by Councillor Kelly and agreed by the members that the Arts Awards and Bursaries for 2023 for the Naas Municipal District be approved.

#### NS24/0623

#### Suspend the byelaws for June, July and August

The members considered the following motion in the name of Councillor Sammon



That the council suspend the byelaws for June, July and August to allow trading in Market Square on Saturdays to expand the space for Naas Farmers Market.

The motion was proposed by Councillor Sammon, seconded by Councillor Brett

A report was received by Mr E Ryan, Municipal District Manager informing the members that there are currently no casual trading byelaws for Naas that would permit casual trading at Market Square and until the Naas Farmers Market out-grows its current location in the Potato Market, it would be premature to expand into Market Square.

In respect of the Parking byelaws, if this proposal was to have merit in the future, the Transport Department would require clarity in respect of the exact location of the parking bays to be suspended, the number of parking bays to be suspended and the dates and times of the required suspension. The Transport Department would recommend that the appointed taxi stand in the area is not suspended. The Transport Department would suggest that the five parking bays south of the Presbyterian Church be considered for any parking bay suspension requirements.

Councillor Sammon stated that maybe the motion was a bit premature as casual trading byelaws would need to be in place but suggested that possibly closing off the lane for a day would be an alternative.

Councillor Breen queried where stall holders could apply to and was advised the LEO office and Kildare Co Council looked after this.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Sammon seconded by Councillor Brett and agreed by the members that the report be noted.



#### NS25/0623

## **Grant allocations for cemetery maintenance**

The members considered the proposed grant allocations for cemetery maintenance for 2023.

	Cemetery/Graveyard	Total Grant 2023
	Bodenstown	€1,070
	Oughterard Cemetery	€535
Ness MD	St. Columcille, Rathmore	€595
Naas MD	St. Johns, Kill	€595
	Maudlins Burial Ground	€335
	St. David's Naas	€335
	Eadestown	€860
		€4,320

Mr C O'Toole advised the members that only applications received are on the report. The application process is now closed. He will be notifying the successful applicants.

Councillor Clear queried if funding could be withheld where the use of glyphosate was ongoing.

Mr C O'Toole advised this could not be dictated in the grant but maybe included in the letter when notifying the successful applicants.

**Resolved** on the proposal of Councillor Brett, seconded by Councillor Kelly and agreed by the members that the grant allocations for cemetery maintenance for 2023 be approved.

#### NS26/0623

# **Pumping station at Osberstown Sallins**

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Kelly Can the council confirm if the works, which were anticipated to commence in Q2/Q3 2023 on the construction of the new pumping station at Osberstown Sallins, have commenced? A report was received by the Building and Development Control Department informing the members that Works have not commenced on the Osberstown pumping station due to a decision by Uisce Éireann.



Development Control tendered for works to the Osberstown pumping station in January of 2023 on behalf of Uisce Éireann. Unfortunately, due to the costs received Uisce Éireann cancelled the tender. The Uisce Éireann legacy department complete an internal review of potential options to progress the works including utilising contractors from their Capital Works Framework. They have now appointed a contractor for the installation of the pumping station. It was agreed that Kildare County Council would tender for the civil works associated with the pumping station. A tender is due to go live this week. It is anticipated that works will commence Q3.

The report was noted.

#### NS27/0623

# Community building in St John's Grove Johnstown

The members considered the following question in the name of Councillor Brett Can the council provide an update on the status of the Community building in St John's Grove Johnstown?

A report was given by Mr E Ryan, Municipal District Manager informing the members that having consulted with our legal team in Regan McEntee solicitors, it is considered that the planning authority are statute barred in relation to pursuing enforcement action against the developers of St. John's Grove, Johnstown for the transfer of community facilities to the residents for the following reasons,

The subject motion relates to Reg. Ref. 99/1831:

- 1) Planning permission for the development is in excess of 7no. years, therefore as per Section 157 (4) (a) (i) of the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as amended), namely (4) (A) "No warning letter or enforcement notice shall issue and no proceedings for an offence under this Part shall commence -
- (i) In respect of a development where no permission has been granted, after seven years from the date of the commencement of the development."
- 2) In granting the permission An Bord Pleanalá, granted the permission for the development subject to 17no. conditions. None of which relate specifically to the use or transfer of the community facilities.



Councillor Brett asked if the management team would consider purchasing the building, the council could approach the owner and buy it.

The report was noted.

The meeting concluded.

# Appendix A

		Vita mia is a play that engages with the theme of mortality by Italian playwright, Emma Dante. This proposal brings a draft	
		translation to the table with dramaturg Dr Tanya Dean, and then to a rehearsed reading with a director and actors, aiming	
Brenda Donohue	Naas	to create a text ready for production.	€2,000.00
		Development of a new body of visual art work around the concept of home and belonging.	
Caoimhe McGuckin	Naas	As a supposition of the size foundation and the trade of the supposition of the size of the supposition of the size of the siz	€1,600.00
		An exploration of toxic fandom, the art that defines a person, and the American television show Glee, <i>Gleek of the Week</i> is	
Conor Burke	Naas	a brand-new performance piece written and developed by actor and playwright Conor Burke. We are currently seeking funding to stage the show at The Moat Theatre.	€1,000.00
COHOL BULKE	Ivaas	We propose to run a Directors Mentoring Programme, the aim of which is to develop new directors within the Moat Club,	€1,000.00
		Naas. It has been designed to cater for a group of 3 novice directors. It will culminate in each of them producing a one-act	
The Moat Club	Naas	play in April 2024.	€2,000.00
THE WOOL CIUD	11003	I plan to attend a one-on-one specialist gold gilding course in July 2023. The course is taught by Richard Walker at the	02,000.00
		Watergild Studios in Hants, UK. I am developing a new body of work that will incorporate gold gilding and will require a	
Isobel Tighe	Naas	subsequent month of studio time to develop this new technique.	€1,000.00
		Collaborating with Craddockstown Nursing Home on a writing project.	
Naas Moat Writers	Naas		€350.00
		My application is for two separate projects:Funding to document an upcoming exhibition at the Luan Gallery in Athlone,	
		which runs from the end of April until the end of June. Funding for time in the studio and materials for the creation of a	
Lucy Sheridan	Naas	new body of work.	€500.00
Martina O'Brien	Naas	To create a new gallery-specific installation for solo exhibition in Galway Arts Centre, in Spring, 2023.	€2,000.00
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	,,,,,,,,
		Full revision of my novel-length manuscript, The Promise of Portham following Reader's Report feedback - a paid service	
Maura McElhone	Naas	via The Inkwell Group.	€650.00
		To write, create and develop new song material with the intention of testing out this new material in front of a live	
		audience in Co Kildare later this year. This creation and songwriting process will be alone, but the future performances	
Megan O'Neill	Naas	would involve other Kildare-based musicians and creatives.	€1,000.00
		As an independent filmmaker/director of photography who suffers chronic pain from degenerative spinal/muscular issues	
		and regularly needs to operate heavy camera rigs, I am applying for funds to purchase a vest-based camera support system	
Richard Lennon	Naas	called an EasyRig to be able to mitigate damage to my back, prolonging my career.	€1,000.00
		We will compete in the All Ireland Ballroom Championships in June and if successful we would use funds to support	
Sarah Hayden & Damien		training for this competition. We hope to improve our training with the support of Kildare arts to further develop our craft	
Kearney	Naas	and in turn promote dance in Kildare.	€300.00
		Embrace Music is a socially-driven entity run by freelance musicians/Arts & Health specialists Sharon Murphy and Sadhbh	
Sharon Murphy & Sadhbh		O'Sullivan. Having delivered project-based initiatives and opportunities for meaningful arts engagement in both	
O'Sullivan	Naas	community and healthcare settings, we now feel it is time to formalise the partnership and devise a business model.	€1,500.00
O Sumvam	14003	community and neutricate settings, we now recrit is time to formalise the partiers inp and devise a business model.	C1,500.00
		We want to propose a residency bringing together an artist Marta Golubowska and Mrs Fildelma Murphy's 6th-class pupils	
		from Robertstown NS, to explore contemporary art in a broad context. We propose an 8-week long collaboration with a	
Robertstown NS	Naas	child-led approach.	€2,500.00
		"The Play's The Thing" is a site-responsive promenade theatre piece taking place in the non-conventional spaces in the	
		Moat Theatre. Parts of Shakespeare's Hamlet will intersect with the fabric of the building, the history of the drama club	
Lianne O'Shea	Naas	resident there and the echoes of many rehearsals past.	€4.000,00
	T	T	
		It is my intention to do an advanced director's course. I feel that this would provide the maximum benefit for our theatre	
Mary Newman	Naas	as directors are currently in short supply.	€575.00
		A	
		As a portrait/figurative artist, Rosemary has, over the years developed an interest in the depiction of the mother in art	
Rosemary Noonan	Naas	which has coincided with her own journey into motherhood in 2017. This project will focus on how motherhood can change identity, the physical emotional turmoil of role in itself	€2,700.00
Rosemary Noonan	INddS	change identity, the physical emotional turmon of role in itself	€2,700.00
		ICON assistant as bligging of Coint Cill Days (The Unauthor) Civil Cill Cill Cill Cill Cill Cill Cil	
		ISBN registered publication of <i>Cuisle Cill Dara (The Heartbeat of Kildare) Vol II</i> an anthology including a mix of short stories,	
		poetry and sketches, much of which is inspired by the local area, local traditions, the local community and life in general	
Naas Creative Writers		around the country. We also base some pieces further afield, to acknowledge how our locale is becoming more culturally diverse. We aim to have c.150 pages (including introduction and brief author biographies) with foreword by author Pauline	
Group	Naas	Clooney.	€650.00
Group	IVaas	cionicy.	€030.00
		We plan to record an EP in Platform4 Audio and Digital Media Studio with the help of Resident House Engineer by the end	
Reroute	Naas	of 2023.	€900.00



# Appendix B

# **Schedule of Municipal District Works 2023**

# **Naas Municipal District**

	Project Details	KCC Central Funding €		Total Agreed LPT + Pay Parking
		€ 1,727,215		€ 1,347,435
	Roads/Footpath Projects			
	Roads/Footpath programme		•	€ 420,000
	Additional Rural Roads Projects			
	Local Road Maintenance (exc. pay parking)	€ 627,055		€ -
	Footpaths	€ 68,335		€ -
v	Traffic Calming	€ 21,625		€ -
Roads	Signage	€ 21,625		€ -
_	Street Cleaning	€ 646,500		€ -
	Taking In-Charge	_	_	
	Taking In-Charge of estates			€ 20,000
	Roads Sub Totals	€ 1,385,140	€ -	
	Roads Sub Total Parking + LPT			€ 440,000
ultural	Community		_	
Economic, Community & Culti Development	Festival Grants	€ 25,500		
	Bealtaine			€ 30,000
	Feile Liam O'Flynn			€ 9,500
	Wild Food Festival			€ 20,000
	Ballymore Eustace Market Day			€ 900
ono	Community Grants	€ 89,316		
Eç	Hurling on the Green			€ 2,000



	€	€
Residents Association Grants	42,921	70,000
Kildare Sports Partnership		€ 20,000
Christmas Lights - Naas		40,000
Christmas Lights - Sallins		3,000
Christmas Lights - Kill		2,000
Christmas Lights - Ballymore Eustace		2,000
Christmas Lights - Johnstown		1,500
Christmas Lights - Eadestown		1,500
Age Friendly Seating		€ 6,000
Community Worker Projects		€ 10,000
Naas Access Group Garden		€ 500
·		€
Ballymore Eustace Looped Walk		20,000
Naas Community College Pitches		50,000
Naas Point		
Memorial Park		15,000
Memorial Park		15,000
Cleanest Town Art Piece		20,000
Scouts (Naas)		€ 8,000
Fleadh Kildare Comhaltas		€ 5,000
Ballymore Eustace Drama		€ 1,000
Ballymore Eustace Graveyard		€ 824
Naas Women's Shed		€ 1,000
Ivaas Women's Sneu		1,000
Sallins Compactor Bin		3,000
Naas Musical Society		€ 2,500
Naas Cricket Club		€ 2,000
Naas Serpents Basketball		€ 2,000
Naas Rugby Club Womens Team		€ 1,000
		€
Bihar Jharkhand Association of Ireland		1,000
Members Nominations	€	49,676 <b>€</b>
Community Sub Total	157,737	<b>400,900</b>
Economic Development, Planning & Heritage		_
Capital Fund		€ 100,000



	T	1			
	Public Realm URDF Match Funding				€ 170,000
	Heritage Projects				€ 25,000
	Kildare Access Network				€ 5,000
	Econ Dev, Planning & Heritage Sub Total	€ -			<b>€</b> 300,000
				€	-
	Libraries & Arts	_	_		
	Music Generation				€ 15,000
	Brigid 1500				€ 50,000
	Decade of Commemoration (annual work program)				€ 9,375
	Coiste Gaeilge				€ 1,000
	Libraries & Arts Sub Total				€
		€ -			75,375
	Climate Action	_	_		
	Rainwater				€ 21,054
	Naas Climate Action				€ 10,000
	Tidy Town Groups	_	_		,
	Tidy Towns Competition	€ 22,728		€	-
	Sponsored Litter Bins	€ 12,110		€	-
	Naas	12,110			5,000
	Kill				2,000
	Sallins				2,000
	Ballymore Eustace				2,000
	Johnstown				1,000
	Eadestown				1,000
	Environment Sub Total	€ 34,838			€ 44,054
ž	Recreation & Amenity		_		
neni	Parks and Landscaping	€ 86,500		€	-
Recreation & Amenity	Playgrounds	€ 63,000		€	-
		00,000			€
	Gyphosate Reduction				12,500 €
Rec	Tree Pruning				25,000 €
	Tree Planting				10,000



	Recreation & Amenity Sub Total	€ 149,500		€ 47,500
		€	€	€
TOTAL	Spent	1,727,215	-	1,307,829
			€	€
BALANCE		€ -	-	39,606